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March 2, 2020 
 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED TO CLO REGARDING GUTHRIE UNDERGROUND STORAGE 
TANK REMOVAL RFP 
 

1. What is the facility ID?  Facility ID is 42-09539 
2. Are the tanks UST tanks empty?  Tanks were emptied in 2016 and haven’t been used since that 

time. Bidders are welcome to confirm the tanks are empty before submitting their bids. 
3. Will we need to dispose of tank bottoms and sludge? Although the tanks were emptied in 2016, 

bidders are encouraged to include a price contingency in their bid if there is sludge that needs to 
be properly disposed of and, if tank bottoms need special disposal. 

4. Can concrete be used as fill material? No. After tank removal, only compactable clean fill can be 
used as fill. 

5. Will removed concrete need to be replaced?  No.  Trench lines can be backfilled with clean fill.  
6. Regarding Cost Summary item 6, will there be an upper limit on the quantity of soil to be over-

excavated? Bidders proposal should include, under Item 3, the estimate number of tons and price 
per ton of clean, compactable fill to fill the area of the excavation of the tanks and, the per ton 
cost for over excavation beyond the base bid for Item 3, if needed.  

7. Regarding Cost Summary item 8, will there be an upper limit on the quantity of soil to be over-
excavated? Bidders proposal should include, under Item 3, the estimate number of tons and price 
per ton of clean, compactable fill to fill the area of the excavation of the tanks and, the per ton 
cost for over excavation beyond the base bid for Item 3, if needed. 

8. Will an environmental phase report be available?  Yes, upon request, a copy will be made available 
to potential vendors who attended the mandatory site walk. 

9. RFP state the site walk was mandatory. Will attendance be required to submit a bid? Yes.  
Potential bidders must have attended the mandatory site walk to submit a bid.  

10. Should items No. 6 and No. 8 reference No 3 on the cost sheet (instead of reference No. 2)?  Yes.   
11. Regarding 3.1 reference services shall commence within five (5) days from the effective date of 

the agreement; is it correct to assume commencement will begin with OCC fourteen (14) day 
notification of UST closure? Commencement shall begin within five (5) days of the effective date 
of the contract.  The first step in the commencement will be to obtain any permits and meet any 
statutory requirements, including, but not limited to a fourteen (14) day notice to the Oklahoma 
Corporation Commission, if required.  Project will be considered timely if the permitting process 
has been started within five (5) days and the site work proceeds promptly upon all reporting 
timelines being met and proper permits being issued.  

12. If potential bidder is already a vendor, must they resubmit the vendor package.  No, unless there 
has been a substantial change such as change of address, name-change and/or bank/payment 
change since previously submitted vendor packet.  

 
 


